PAROWAN CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA
FOR SEPTEMBER 8, 2022

Notice is hereby given that the City Council of the City of Parowan, Utah, will hold its regularly
scheduled meeting beginning at 6:00 p.m. on Thursday, September 8%, 2022. The Council
will meet in the Parowan City Council Chambers located at 35 East 100 North, Parowan, Utah.
This is a public meeting, and anyone is invited to attend. The public is also welcome to view
the meeting electronically on the “Parowan City Live Stream” YouTube channel.

HOMLTOWN OF
SOUTHEKEN LTAH

COUNCIL MEETING

1. Welcome and Call to Order: Mayor Mollie Halterman

2. Opening Ceremonies (three-minute limit): By Invitation. The audience is invited to
participate.

3. Declaration of Conflicts With or Personal Interest In any Agenda Items: Councilmembers

4. Approval of Meeting's Agenda - Council Vote

5. Public Comment: Time has been set aside for the public to express their ideas, concerns,
and comments on non-agenda items (comments are limited to 2 minutes per person).

CONSENT MEETING (Consent items are only those which require no further discussion or are

routine in nature. All items on the Consent Agenda are usually adopted by a single motion.)

6. Approval of City Council Meeting Minutes for August 11th, August 25%, August 26%™, and
August 301, 2022.

7. Approval of Warrant Register for September 8", 2022

ACTION MEETING

8. Mayor’s Recommendation: Approve Weston Reese for Planning and Zoning Committee
Alternate Member

9. Clarification on Pool Contract with Jones and DeMille: Councilmember Rochell Topham

10. Veterans’ Memorial: Councilmember Jim Shurtleff

11. Architectural and Engineering Services with FFKR for Old Rock Church: Councilmember Jim
Shurtleff

12. Approval of City Manager: Mayor Halterman

WORK MEETING

13. Signs for Frisbee Golf at the Library Park: Billy Calloway

14. Discussion Regarding Reinstating Suspended Commercial Impact Fees: David Burton
15. Suicide Awareness Month — September 2022: Chief Berg

16. Reports, Updates, Old Business Follow Up — Elected Officials and Staff

17. Closed Session (UCA 52-4-204 & 205) to discuss one or more of the following (if necessary):
The character, professional competence or physical or mental health of an individual; collective bargaining;
pending or reasonably imminent litigation; the purchase, exchange, or lease of real property, including any form of
a water right or water shares; the sale of real property, including any form of water rights or water shares;
deployment of security personnel, devices or systems; investigative proceedings regarding allegations of criminal
misconduct; contract negotiations, the disclosure of which would be detrimental to the city's bargaining position.

ACTION MEETING
18. Any Action Necessary as a Result of the Closed Session
19. Adjournment

Parowan City Council Meeting Agenda for 9-08-2022 Page 1 of 2



Parowan City Council Meeting
August 11, 2022 - 6:00 p.m.
Parowan City Council Chambers

: OWANI 35 E 100 N, Parowan, UT 84761

HOMETOWS OF
SOUTHEHN UTAH

Present: Mayor Mollie Halterman
Councilmember David Burton
Councilmember Sharon Downey
Councilmember Matt Gale
Councilmember Jim Shurtleff
Councilmember Rochell Topham

Staff Present: Justin Wayment, City Attorney; Callie Bassett, Recorder; Heather Shurtleff, Deputy
Recorder; Judy Schiers, Treasurer; Stacy Gale, Deputy Treasurer; Chief Mike Berg,
Parowan PD, Lt. Addison Adams, Parowan PD; Chief David Schiers, Parowan FD;

Public Present: Please see attached sign in sheet.

WELCOME AND CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Halterman called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.
Councilmember Rochell Topham offered the invocation. She then led the council and the public in the
Pledge of Allegiance.

Mayor Halterman welcomed everyone to the Truth in Taxation Public Hearing on behalf of herself and
the city council. She said as an elected official it is so appreciated when people in the community send
emails, texts, phone calls and come to their city council meetings. She said there are a lot of ways to
communicate with the city council, and all ways are appreciated as they face these important decisions
for Parowan.

The Mayor said she was recently at a meeting where the place of an elected official was compared to
being somewhere between a dog and a fire hydrant. She said that is a good comparison of how it feels
sometimes when they are facing difficult decisions like truth in taxation. She said in preparing for this
meeting she has been getting quite a bit of feedback from people in the community. She said overall
there has been a need for clarity —in the process, about specific questions regarding peoples’ tax
notices, and the tax increase in general. She said they appreciate the Iron County Auditor Dan Jessen,
who was there to help with a general overview of the tax notice and to answer any questions that may
arise during the public hearing or council discussion. She said there are four places where taxes are
being affected: the two school levies, the property tax increase that came with the property
assessments, and the Parowan property tax increase. She said they would be focusing on the Parowan
property tax increase line item on the tax notice.

Mayor Halterman said at the end of the public hearing portion of the meeting, the council would discuss
and vote to take action to approve the Fiscal Year 2023 final budget with the amount of the deficit
determined, and a decision on moving forward or not moving forward with the increased tax rate. To
simplify, the vote made will be final approval on the tax increase as noticed, no tax increase, or some
compromise in between. Either way, she said when the meeting concludes, the council will leave with
an approved balanced budget for Fiscal Year 2022-23. She said the city council and staff pledge a

Parowan City Council Meeting August 11, 2022 — cdb Page 1 0f 12



continued effort to make a thorough and ongoing evaluation of the budget throughout the year and to
make adjustments when deemed necessary. The city council and staff have taken into consideration, in
determining this tax rate, the appropriate use of these funds.

Declaration of Conflicts: Councilmembers Matt Gale and Jim Shurtleff declared conflicts. Their wives
are employees of Parowan City. They will not vote on their wives’ positions, but will vote on everything
else in regards to the budget.

Mayor Halterman said that each person who would like to speak during the public comments may do so
in an organized manner to address the council. She said they will have three minutes each, and during
this time responses from the council will be limited and only when they feel moved to do so. The
council may respond after being recognized by the mayor.

Mayor Halterman said that after the public hearing the council will have the opportunity to respond to
any comments they would like to respond to, and then they will enter into discussions prior to voting.
She asked the public to remember the following items when addressing the city council:
e These officials were elected by them to represent them.
e Please stay on topic of the Parowan portion of the proposed tax increase.
e Please refrain from applause or outbursts.
e Please refrain from off topic comments, over speaking one another, and comments from the
audience.
e She said they want to hear from all who would like to speak, so at the 3-minute time limit,
please step away from the microphone and let the next person have their time.
e Remember the city council has a hard decision to make, so imagine being in their shoes and
maintain civility and order as is appropriate for public meeting.

Mayor Halterman said her goal is to have the public feel like they have been able to say their piece and
help the council make a good decision so they can adopt a final budget with the amount of property tax
increase that is needed. She asked that people be aware of what in bounds and out of bounds would be
for this discussion. She ended by quoting Mr. Troy Houston who said, “Mean what you say. Say what
you mean, but don’t be mean when you say it.”

PUBLIC HEARING TO HEAR COMMENTS REGARDING AMENDMENTS TO THE FISCAL YEAR 2022
BUDGET

Motion: Councilmember Downey moved to open the public hearing on truth in taxation.
Second: Councilmember Gale seconded the motion.

Vote: All councilmembers voted in favor of the motion.

Mr. Grant Cox addressed the council. He thanked the city of Parowan for forty-five years of getting to
know him and he getting to know them. He asked how many people in Parowan City were on a fixed
income. Because of today’s economy and inflation, he thinks raising taxes is an atrocity. The council
needs to take this into consideration. He is 100% against this tax increase. The city needs to start living
within their means, and should cut services if needed.

Mrs. Susan Sepe addressed the council. She said in an economy of high inflation, continued cost

increases, including the property tax increase due to the school district bond, she was not in favor of an
additional tax increase to pay increased police salaries. However, after much thought and reasoning, she

Parowan City Council Meeting August 11, 2022 —cdb Page 2 of 12



came to the conclusion that the police department is a vital asset to this community. She feels if the
police department is given these raises, they need to be reciprocal and do their job. She expressed
some of her frustrations with the police department. She also expressed the need for more information
from the police department to help make citizens aware of what is happening in town. She said she
would never deny any person from receiving a living wage. She is asking for visibility and open
communication from the police department in return.

Mrs. Cindy Stanphill said she had questions about the tax increase due to the school bond, whether or
not building the city pool will affect their property taxes, she asked who makes the decision on how
much the property tax rate increases, and if their property taxes are based on our community. She said
she knows we need a police department, but she doesn’t feel we need that many officers. We have
been doing well. As a resident, she has been fighting for the city to spend within their means. She said
they need to consider all of the residents who are on fixed incomes.

Mr. Dan Jessen, Iron County Auditor, addressed the council. He said each spring he receives the tax roll
from the county assessor, who sets the value of each individual property at the market value. Mr.
Jessen then works with the state tax commission to calculate the tax rates for all the different taxing
entities in I[ron County. He does not calculate the rates for the state levies which are set by the
legislature. He mails out the valuation notices to the property owners. This notice is not a bill, but it
tells the property owner what their new value is as set by the assessor, and informs them of what the
tax rates are and what their tax bill will be in November. The other purpose of this valuation notice is to
talk about any increases that are going on, like this truth in taxation for Parowan City.

Mr. Jessen explained that this is a complex year. He said property tax rates or not like sales taxes that
have a fixed rate, where if the rate goes up, the bill goes up. He said with property tax, if the value of
your house goes up, the rate drops and the same amount of revenue is given to the taxing entities each
year. This is how it works, on average, across the entire county. He said it is difficult to wrap one’s mind
around this because everyone’s values go up by different amounts. He said each property value goes
into the tax base. Once the base is finalized, the rate is calculated to yield the amount of property tax
revenue to each taxing entity. Aslong as there isn’t a truth in taxation process on the main levy or a
bond election, and as long as your value goes up the same as the average increase, your bill will not go
up at all. If your value goes up more than the average increase, then you now have a bigger piece of the
pie and you will pay a little bit more in taxes. If your value goes up smaller than the average, you will
actually pay less than the prior year, even though your value is going up because it is going up less than
average. Itis called the equalization process of property taxes.

Mr. Jessen said this year is very complex because there are several things affecting your taxes. The first
is your property value vs. average value. The second thing to impact property taxes is the state school
levy going up (HB293). The third thing is the school bond that was passed last year. This is the first year
that the school bond payment is being applied. A special levy was created to generate the amount of
money that the school board needs to make that bond payment. This is the first year we are feeling the
effect of that. Mr. Jessen said the final thing affecting property taxes is the municipal rate and that is
what Parowan City is debating at this meeting. The increase that Parowan is looking for is $157,000.

Mr. Jessen said that if people feel like the value that was set on their property is too high, they can
appeal that to the Auditor’s office. He said his office also runs abatement programs.

Parowan City Council Meeting August 11, 2022 — cdb Page 3 0f12



Mrs. Tricia Harris asked for clarification on when something is a conflict of interest and when it’s not.
Attorney Wayment said that what the Councilmembers did tonight was say that they will vote on the
truth in taxation, but will except out their spouses because of that relationship. He said everyone has to
vote their own conscience when it comes to a conflict of interest. It isn’t his position or anyone else’s to
tell someone that a conflict of interest is going to affect their ability to vote. Usually anytime there is a
financial interest it is best to declare that conflict. In this situation, the councilmembers have decided
they are not going to vote on the wage increase for their spouses, but they will for everyone else. Mrs.
Harris also asked where the 9% increase for the city employees is coming from. Mrs. Judy Schiers
explained that the 9% and the 32% wage increases were factored in to the tentative budget, and that
the final budget has to be approved before any of those increases go into effect. Mrs. Harris said she
appreciates our police department. She said the value of their properties doesn’t help the city at all so it
is weird to her that the taxes go up. She said it makes no sense to her. Taxes get raised a lot faster than
they ever get lowered.

Mrs. Mary Jane Cassinetto addressed the council. She said she is new to Parowan and loves living here.
She thanked the council for having this public hearing. She said no one wants their taxes increased, but
with economics the way they are, it is difficult not only for residents to run on a budget, but city
council’s as well, especially when the prices of things are sky rocketing. She offered a solution to the
council regarding the wage increases that instead of these increases happening all at once, perhaps they
might consider a 7-year plan with an increase each year, but have a re-evaluation at 3 years. She said
there are so many variables out there, it is difficult to foresee what is going on. She said year three
might allow that increase to flatten out. The re-evaluation might be a good check on how things are
going, and it would hit everyone at one time. She said she is against the proposed increase, but would
be open to small adjustments.

Mrs. Vickie Hicks said she feels sorry for council because this is such a difficult situation and no matter
how they vote, they can’t win. She suggested putting this on the ballot for a vote. She would like the
community to have a say as to whether this goes through or it doesn’t. She said if this doesn’t go
through and they have to cut services, what will they cut? She suggested cutting the airport. She also
asked what happened to the fairground budget and the pool budget. She said she doesn’t think there is
a person in this room who doesn’t think the police are worth every penny they make. The question is
can the community afford what we are doing? If we can’t, how do we subsidize this, and where do we

go from here.

Mrs. Jennifer Hunter said that on July 21%, the council voted to give a 9% increase across the board
COLA raise for the city employees even though Councilmember Burton said the state is only giving a
3.5% COLA. She said what she heard just now was that this not part of the 23%, it is part of a different
budget. She said that Mayor Halterman said this meeting was just to talk about that 23%. She asked if
there will be a different meeting where the community can look over the entire budget and weigh in on
whether or not the employees really need a 9% COLA wage increase or whether or not we really need
these specific services. Mayor Halterman said the budget hearings were in May, and we have a
tentative budget that has the 9% included.

Iron County Sheriff Ken Carpenter address the council. He said it is important for everyone to
understand the history that has led to this point. He explained that back in 2010, the state changed the
Utah Retirement System for public safety. Law enforcement went from a 20 year, 50% retirement to a
25 year, 37.3% retirement. As a result, it has become very difficult to recruit good, qualified candidates
to fill law enforcement positions. The Wasatch Front’s reaction to this was they had the money, they

Parowan City Council Meeting August 11, 2022 — cdb Page 4 0of 12



would raise their wages high enough to make them enticing to officers in rural areas and lure them away
from their positions. That is exactly what has been happening since 2010.

Sheriff Carpenter said more recently, after the riots in Salt Lake City because of the soft approach they
chose to take towards law enforcement, their officers left in mass. As a result, Salt Lake City decided
that they really did need a police department after all. They had such a bad reputation, however, that
the only way they could recruit officers was to give huge increases in pay. Last year they increase their
wages by 30%. West Valley City, South Jordan, Park City, and other cities in the area also increased their
wages by more than 30%. The Wasatch Front has made it impossible to keep police officers. Sheriff
Carpenter said that prior to the sheriff department’s raises, he lost 22 deputies in 10 months, almost a
quarter of his entire force. Cedar City, Enoch City and Brian Head saw what was happening, and raised
their wages substantially in order to keep their officers. Parowan has lost two officers to Brian Head,
which is almost half of their police department. In order to stop the bleeding, the county gave the
sheriff's department significant increases to stop the loss. He said that is the history of what is
happening.

Sheriff Carpenter said he understands how difficult it is to raise taxes, and he understands the burden
that is placed on the tax payer. He said Southern Utah is not controlling the conversation, it is being
controlled up north. He said if we can’t at least pay a wage that is somewhat competitive, then our
officers are going to go to other places as we've already seen. He said he hopes the council will give that
consideration as they think about this difficult decision.

Mr. Rob Shelton said his tax bill is increasing $120. That is $10/ month. He said all he has to say is that
is a small price to pay to make sure that if he calls 911, a trained officer is going to show up at his house.
He said he is not big on raising taxes, but that’s what we have to do. He said we need to have services,
and if we have to compete with what he just heard [from the Sheriff] and we have to compete with
northern Utah, we’ve got to raise our taxes to do that. He said we must have services. We must have a
police department.

Mr. Jed Sudweeks asked if when the city retires some of their debt on bonds, will the taxes go down,
since you're not allowed to collect on things you don’t own anymore.

Mr. Dan Jessen explained that in this case, an entity can have multiple levies that are combined into the
levy that you see. Parowan has one levy, which is the normal property tax. If Parowan were to pass a
bond by bond election, it would create a new levy to make that payment. There are none of those that
are currently in the tax system. That is not to say that Parowan doesn’t have debt. There could be
revenue bonds that are paid by sales tax dollars. There could be electric bonds that are paid by
revenues from that enterprise fund. He said the only bonds that Parowan residents are paying for right
now are the school bonds. Parowan just has the one property tax levy, which is called a mill levy, which
generates property tax revenue to run the general fund.

Mr. Jessen said that If the city were to pay off some debt and they had a budget surplus, the city could
decide to lower its levy, but it wouldn’t automatically happen because something is paid off. He said
when he receives the tax roll each year, he informs every entity of what revenue they will receive, which
is last year’s revenue plus new growth. At that point, the city can decide to accept that revenue and
that is the amount of revenue they will get. This year that revenue was $731,000. What triggered truth
in taxation is the city said in order to balance the budget with these increases, they need $900,000 in tax
instead of $731,000. He said if there actually was a situation when there was a surplus, the city could

Parowan City Council Meeting August 11, 2022 — cdb Page 5 of 12



say, for example, they don’t need $731,000, they only need $600,000, they could arbitrarily lower the
levy. He said that is how you do a tax cut. Most entities take their new revenue (last year’s revenue
plus new growth.)

Mr. Jessen explained that there is no inflation component built in to property tax. With sales tax, there
naturally is because it is a fixed rate. As things get more expensive, there are more revenue dollars
generated. With property tax, the city, by definition, will gets the same amount of revenue as the prior
year, but the value of those dollars is now depleted a little bit. Just like it effects the citizens, it effects
the city. There is no inflationary component, which mean if the city doesn’t continue to grow, it will
receive the same amount of revenue every single year for the next decades. If there is no new growth,
Parowan City would receive $731,000 every single year. The city has its cost going up as well, so it is a
very tricky thing for the city council to figure out when to do a tax increase to adjust, even just for
inflation, and when do they not. There are no bond levies that would fall off with debt. The debt
Parowan has is paid by other revenue sources.

Someone from the audience asked Mr. Jessen a question, saying they have seen the market value of
their home go up, so doesn’t that increase the tax revenue Parowan receives. Mr. Jessen explained that
if the value of all of the property tax base (all the homes and all the residences) went up by 10%, the
rate that he calculates will fall by 10%, and the city would get the same amount of revenue as they did
the prior year. He said if, on average, everyone’s property value shrinks, the rate would go up and the
city would receive the same amount of revenue. Property tax is designed like this to provide a very
stable revenue source. The only new money that comes in every year without any action taken like this
meeting is new homes. He said the mayor asked him to come up with that number for last year, and
Parowan received about $23,600 in new home revenue. It wasn’t anywhere near what was needed to
get the city to $900,000.

Mr. Jessen said that “Truth in Taxation” is a marketing term used by the legislation that allows new tax
revenue to be generated, because the entity has to go through a specific process and be very
transparent. That's what “Truth in Taxation” is what we call doing a property tax increase.

Someone asked when their property value goes up, where does that additional money go. Mr. Jessen
said if you compare how much you pay to Parowan City year over year, that will stay the same, even if
your value goes up, as long as your value doesn’t go up more than the average increase. If someone’s
property tax goes up, they have a bigger portion of the pie, and someone else’s tax will go down. The
same amount of revenue will be generated. The tax rate went down for this year. Last year's rate is
actually higher in these cases, with the exception of the state levy (because the peg the rate), and
Parowan’s rate if the increase doesn’t go through. Even with the increase, the rate will be lower than

last year.
Mr. Jessen gave a brief description of what the county assessor does.

Ms. Heather Peat said she has heard the word transparency a lot in this meeting. She said she hoped
the council would indulge her, because there is a deadline of noon tomorrow on something, and she
thinks it is very important that this be commented on. She said at the last city council meeting, several
citizens expressed their concern and or appreciation for Mr. Cleve Matheson upon his resignation as city
manager. She said they also asked for the council’s transparency as to why he walked away from this
position. She said if a statement has been made, she has not come across it. During that same meeting,
she said it was brought up by several different people that it appears to be a toxic environment in the

Parowan City Council Meeting August 11, 2022 — cdb Page 6 of 12



office, and that this is ultimately what pushed him to his breaking point that caused his resignation. If
this is the case, she is concerned that this problem will continue, and we may ultimately lose more
valuable employees. She said currently there are three positions listed on the city’s website. She said
the part-time seasonal parks maintenance worker and the solid waste collection truck driver positions
are the first two, and the city is accepting application until these positions are filled. The third position is
city manager, which is only accepting application until Friday, August 12, 2022 at 12:00 noon.

Personally, she said she would have never guessed that hiring a new city manager is an easier position to
fill than a garbage man. If a scandal is to be avoided, she said she would recommend clear and precise
communication with the council’s constituents. If they are left to their own devices to come up with
their own conclusions, there seems to be just one thing. That is that somebody is at play with their own
agenda and they are potentially going to bring a lot of detriment to Parowan.

Councilmember David Burton called for a Point of Order. He said this is a public hearing is to discuss the
proposed property tax increase. He said Ms. Peat’s comments were beyond the scope of this hearing at
this time. Mayor Halterman agreed.

Mrs. Cindy Stanphill addressed the council again, saying she is trying to understand why we need to go
through the truth in taxation process. She suggested cutting capital projects to balance the budget.
Councilmember Topham said she is on the right track. They could cut the capital projects, but they
would still be short revenue to balance the budget. She said if citizens can’t afford things, they have to
cut their budgets. They city should do the same.

Mr. Mark Alpers asked if a referendum can take place on this. He wanted to know if the public can
challenge tonight’s decision and put it on the ballot. Councilmember Shurtleff said there are some
qualifications that have to met such as a certain number of voter signatures that have to be gathered
and submitted to the county recorder. It has to be done by the citizens.

Mrs. Heather Shurtleff, resident and Parowan City employee, said she is very happy to pay the price of a
movie ticket every month to have a healthy and viable police force to protect her and her family, and
the citizens families, and to be able to recruit and retain police officers successfully so Parowan can
continue to be a wonderful community.

Hearing no further comments, Mayor Halterman entertained a motion to close the public hearing and

move back into discussion.
MOTION: Councilmember Topham moved to close the public hearing and go into the council’s regular

discussion.
SECOND: Councilmember Burton seconded the motion.
VOTE: All councilmembers voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried.

MOTION: Councilmember Downey moved to have a 10-minute recess.
SECOND: Councilmember Gale seconded the motion.
VOTE: All councilmembers voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried. The took a recess at 7:10

p.m.

CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Halterman called the meeting back to order at 7:22 p.m.

Parowan City Council Meeting August 11, 2022 —cdb Page 7 of 12



ACTION MEETING:
Discussion and Action on Proposed Property Tax Increase, Certified Tax Rate and Adoption of Fiscal
Year 2023 Budget by Resolution 2022-08-01:

If Truth in Taxation does not pass, the city has $731,880 from property tax for this coming year’s
budget. The Mayor offered 4 property tax increase scenarios for the council to consider, discuss and
vote on:
e 1-Truthin Taxation as explained on the current notice (what has been approved in Tentative
Budget)

4+ This is the amount approved in the tentative budget.

¢+ Includes a 32% across the board increase for police wages and for increased and
inflationary costs like gas, oil, increased insurances, etc.

4 $900,000 anticipated Property Tax
e 2 —Truth in Taxation
4+ Classification of officers as opposed to the 32% across the board
$874,000 needed
$731,880 current
4 $142,120 - Truth in Taxation
¢ There will not be quite as large an increase as the property valuation notices says.
e 3A-Truth in Taxation — Meet in the Middle Rate
¢ Classification (Step in Grade) of officers
$874,000
$731,880
$142,120/2 = $71,060.00 Truth in Taxation

¢ $71,060.00 from Capital Improvement Projects
and savings

4 Increase of what was seen on the valuation would be slightly half of the current tax
notice.

e 3B - Without the 6" officer
¢+ Approximately half the proposed rate on the tax notice

¢ $20,672 from Capital Improvement Projects
and/or savings.

e 4 —No Truth in Taxation

Parowan City Council Meeting August 11, 2022 — cdb Page 8 of 12



4 Classification of officers (Step in Grade)

$731,880 anticipated Property Tax

¢ $142,120 Capital Improvement Projects
and/or savings

The Mayor opened the discussion to the council.

Councilmember Downey said that she is retired and on fixed income. She watches the news quite a bit,
and Utah is at a 13.6% inflation rate, which is much higher than the national average. The entire council
has looked at the 32% increase and have come to a different conclusion. This has been very difficult
and the council has taken this very seriously. They have considered inflation, the elderly, and families
with children.

Councilmember Burton asked Mrs. Judy Schiers how much of our savings do we have to retain to stay
within the state required 5% - 35%. Mrs. Schiers said we like to keep 12% of the fund balance in the
bank. She said if they chose option 4, they would still need to take from capital projects because they
don’t have enough in savings. It would most likely be half.

Councilmember Topham asked how much the city has in capital improvements. Councilmember
Shurtleff said they have $996,988 for capital projects. He said they would need to come up with $142,
120 from capital projects and/or savings.

Councilmember Gale said he doesn’t want to touch the savings. He would like to keep it at the 12%, and
then pull the rest from capital improvements. Councilmember Shurtleff said they would need to decide
which capital improvements should take the hit. Councilmember Topham said that all of the projects
should take a hit just to be fair.

Councilmember Shurtleff said there is $56,988 dollars in the Library fund for the roof. That bid came in
for around $25,000 dollars. He asked if the fire house fund is restricted. Mrs. Schiers explained which
funds in the capital funds are restricted and cannot be touched - they include the airport fund, the pool
money and the rock church engineering.

Councilmember Shurtleff said he wanted to be upfront and perfectly clear where he stands. He feels it
is absolutely critical that they fund the police. He said the problem is recruitment and retention. He
read from the ULCT power and duties manual, saying that the purpose of incorporated cities, first and
foremost, is to provide services. First among those services is public safety. He said they need to show
that commitment to the guys who are asked to do the hard stuff. They have to take care of the people
you're going to ask to take the hill. They have to make sure that they’ve got what they need. Public
safety is the number one priority. $12/month is a small price to pay to have an officer there when
needed.

Councilmember Gale asked if they go with number 4, are they just prolonging the inevitable and will
they have to address this again in the future. Councilmember Shurtleff said they will have to because
they won’t have the capital funds to draw from. They are hoping that things will improve in the future
to help offset that, but they can’t rely on that. He said that they have worked hard at building up the
enterprise funds and the savings account, and they are both solid at this point. If they took a little bit

Parowan City Council Meeting August 11, 2022 — cdb Page 9 of 12



from savings and a little bit from capital projects. The council agreed that they do not want to go below
the 12% in our savings.

Mrs. Schiers said that the city has had to draw from savings every year. They haven’t drawn from the
enterprise funds for the last 4-5 years. Most of our bonds are in the enterprise funds, so they don’t
affect the general fund. Councilmember Topham stated that the general fund hasn’t been self-
sustaining for the last 4-5 years. Mrs. Schiers agreed. She said if we hadn’t gotten rid of the fairgrounds
we would be in a bigger mess. The same thing with the pool. Mrs. Schiers said it’s not like they aren’t
trying to figure out everything they can. Councilmember Topham said that basically the city should have
done truth in taxation 4 or 5 years ago. Mrs. Schiers agreed. There has not been a truth in taxation
since 2007. Councilmember Shurtleff said it has been fifteen years since there has been a property tax
increase. Councilmember Topham said now this is coming to fruition and this is where we are at, and it
is difficult because of everything else that has happened and going on at the exact same time. She said
it is almost like the perfect storm.

Councilmember Gale said he likes Councilmember Shurtleff's idea of pulling a little bit of money from
everywhere. Councilmember Shurtleff said as far as the tax increase, they should go with the smallest
amount they can get by with.

The Council discussed option 3A. Mr. Jessen said that if the council increased the levy to $802,940
(§731,880 + $71,060), that would be a little less than 50% of what the residents saw on the tax notice.
That will set the new levy at $802,940 for next year plus new growth.

Mrs. Schiers explained that the tentative budget included the $900,000 from property taxes. If they
council decides to go with the $874,000, that is only an increase of $142,120. Half of that would come
from truth in taxation ($71,060) and half from capital improvement projects and savings ($71,060). She
said that any other budget than what they tentative budget was is a whole new budget.

The council discussed the following numbers:

$30,000 from the Library roof fund (because the roof bid came in at $26,000).
$15,000 from the wildland fire start-up (because they don’t have any engine bosses).
$26,000 from savings.

Mr. Jessen said if the council goes with option 3A, the property tax revenue will be $802,940, then we
will increase the funds balance appropriation from savings, and decrease the expense side of the capital
improvements, and that is how they will balance the budget.

Councilmember Burton said he hates the idea of raising taxes. He thinks the city needs to work to go
after every revenue option available.

MOTION: Councilmember Downey moved to accept option 3A to set the new property tax revenue at
$802,940, the difference being pulled from capital improvements and savings for a budget
total of $874,000.

SECOND: Councilmember Shurtleff seconded the motion.

VOTE: A Roll Call Vote was taken as follows:

Councilmember Shurtleff — Aye

Councilmember Gale — Aye

Councilmember Downey — Aye

Parowan City Council Meeting August 11, 2022 —cdb Page 10 of 12



Councilmember Topham — Aye
Councilmember Burton - Aye
All councilmembers voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried.

Mayor Halterman said she would entertain a motion to accept the final budget for FY 2022-23.

MOTION: Councilmember Gale moved to approve the FY23 budget to include $802,940 property tax
revenue (an increase in property taxes by $71,060), and using $45,878 from the capital
improvements and $25,182 from savings.

SECOND: Councilmember Downey seconded the motion.

Councilmember Shurtleff called for a Division of the Questions: The removal Heather Shurtleff and Stacy
Gale from the budget to consider them separately.
Councilmember Gale seconded the motion.

VOTE: A vote was taken on the final FY2022-23 budget, except for wage increases for Heather Shurtleff
and Stacy Gale. A roll call vote was taken as follows:

Councilmember Shurtleff — Aye

Councilmember Gale — Aye

Councilmember Downey — Aye

Councilmember Topham — Aye

Councilmember Burton - Aye

All councilmembers voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried.

MOTION: Councilmember Downey made a motion to include Heather Shurtleff in the budget
SECOND: Councilmember Rochell Topham seconded the motion.

VOTE: A roll call vote was taken as follows:

Councilmember Shurtleff — Abstain

Councilmember Gale — Aye

Councilmember Downey — Aye

Councilmember Topham — Aye

Councilmember Burton - Aye

Ayes 4, Abstain 1. The motion carried.

MOTION: Councilmember Downey made a motion to include Stacy Gale in the budget.
SECOND: Councilmember Rochell Topham seconded the motion.

VOTE: A roll call vote was taken as follows:

Councilmember Shurtleff — Aye

Councilmember Gale — Abstain

Councilmember Downey — Aye

Councilmember Topham — Aye

Councilmember Burton - Aye

Ayes 4, Abstain 1. The motion carried.

ADJOURNMENT:
MOTION: Councilmember Gale moved to adjourn the meeting.
SECOND: Councilmember Downey seconded the motion.

Parowan City Council Meeting August 11, 2022 —cdb Page 11 of 12



VOTE: The council voted unanimously in favor of the motion. The motion carried. The meeting was
adjourned at 8:31 p.m.

Mollie Halterman, Mayor

Callie Bassett, City Recorder

Date Approved:

Parowan City Council Meeting August 11, 2022 — cdb Page 12 of 12



Parowan City Council Meeting
August 25, 2022 - 6:00 p.m.
Parowan City Council Chambers
35 E 100 N, Parowan, UT 84761

HOME YDV A Ot
SULTHEKN LTAH

Present: Mayar Mollie Halterman
Councilmember David Burton
Councilmember Sharon Downey
Councilmember Matt Gale
Councilmember Jim Shurtleff
Councilmember Rochell Topham

Staff Present: Christian Jones, Assistant City Attorney; Callie Bassett, Recorder; Judy Schiers, Treasurer;
Stacy Gale, Deputy Treasurer; Chief Mike Berg, Parowan PD

Public Present: Please see attached sign in sheet.

1. Welcome and Call to Order: Councilmember Topham called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.

2. Mayor Pro Tempore:
MOTION: Councilmember Shurtleff nominated Councilmember Topham to serve as Mayor Pro
Tempore for the meeting.
SECOND: Councilmember Downey seconded the motion.
VOTE: All councilmembers voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried.

3. Opening Ceremonies: Councilmember Gale offered the invocation. He then led the council and
public in the pledge of allegiance.

4. Declaration of Conflicts by the Councilmembers: No conflicts were declared.

5. Approval of Meeting Agenda:

MOTION: Councilmember Downey moved to approve the agenda as outlined.
SECOND: Councilmember Gale seconded the motion.

VOTE: The Council voted unanimously in favor of the motion. The motion carried.

Mayor Pro Tempore made a clarification on the “True Ram” agenda items. She stated that this item was
on the Work Meeting portion of the agenda and so would not be able to be voted on that night.
Councilmember Shurtleff said that they could amend the motion to approve the agenda, and then move
to put the “True Ram” agenda item to the top of the action meeting.

MOTION: Councilmember Shurtleff moved to amend the motion to approve the agenda
SECOND: Councilmember Downey seconded the motion.
VOTE: All councilmembers voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried.

MOTION: Councilmember Shurtleff moved to place agenda item #11 in front of agenda item #8 on the
Action Meeting.
SECOND: Councilmember Downey seconded the motion.

Parowan City Council Meeting August 25, 2022 - cdb Page 1 of6



VOTE: All councilmembers voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried.
6. Public Comment: There were no comments from the public.
CONSENT MEETING:

7. Approval of Warrant Register for August 25%, 2022
8. Approval of the July 2022 Financial Statement

MOTION: Councilmember Shurtleff moved to approve the consent agenda items #6 & 7.

SECOND: Councilmember Downey seconded the motion.

DISCUSSION: Councilmember Gale said that his name is listed twice on the warrant register for the
ULCT conference. He said one of those names should be Mayor Halterman’s name. This was noted by
the city recorder and will be corrected.

VOTE: The Council voted unanimously in favor of the motion. The motion carried.

ACTION MEETING:

9. “True Ram” Resolution with Parowan High School: Principal Kim Bailey

Mr. Bailey began by thanking the council for all they do. They recognize that this is a public service, and
they appreciate their dedication and time spent in serving the city. He said there is nothing more
valuable than the people that they serve, and that has to be at the forefront of everything that we do.

Mr. Bailey said he feels like this is an opportunity for the council and the school to be a little more
transparent in what they do, and in understanding what those roles are. He also feels that this is a
historic moment to say that we love Parowan. He said people greet him all the time, and usually the
first thing out of their mouths is that they love Parowan. His goal is to have all of his students say that as
they leave PHS. He said that is going to take a lot more work than he can do himself. He has realized
this as a principal. There are greater needs than just his school. There are community needs, and we all
need to step up and do our part. That is why he is here.

Mr. Bailey asked that the council listen to the young people that he brought with him. He said they are
some of the greatest people in the school. They want to have a unified resolution with the city. Itis
something they are going to utilize in their meetings, in their school, and focus on throughout this
coming school year. He invited the council to do the same — to use this in their meetings as a guide for
what they do. He wanted the council to know that everyone there that night loves and cares about this
community. He said they are all in.

Student body president Daisy Dunlap and other student officers (Brooke English, Choe Townsend,
Jayden Griffiths) read the letter/resolution presented to the council (see attached.) The council then
voted on the resolution. Mr. Bailey added that this is an opportunity for the school and the city to step
up, to put Parowan in the forefront, and to work together to build the community and make a
difference.

MOTION: Councilmember Gale moved to adopt the True Ram resolution with Parowan High School.
SECOND: Councilmember Downey seconded the motion.
VOTE: A roll call vote was taken as follows:

AYE NAY
Councilmember Burton X
Councilmember Topham X

Parowan City Council Meeting August 25, 2022 —cdb Page 2 of 6



Councilmember Downey X
Councilmember Gale
Councilmember Shurtleff X

>

The motion carried. The True Ram Resolution was approved.

The Council, Police Chief, SRO, Student Council, and other prominent members of the community took a
few minutes to sign the two large copies of the resolution.

Schoolboard member Mr. Ben Johnson commended the city and the school for working together on this
resolution.

10. Review/Action on New Economic Development Committee Member Lori Eichelberger:
MOTION: Councilmember Downey moved to approve Lori Eichelberger as a member of the Economic
Development Committee.

SECOND: Councilmember Gale seconded the motion.

VOTE: The council voted unanimously in favor of the motion. The motion carried.

11. Review/Action on Arbor Day Proclamation from Shade Tree Committee:

In order for Parowan to maintain its status as a “Tree City U.S.A.”, the city is required to declare and
hold an Arbor Day celebration.

MOTION: Councilmember Burton moved to proclaim October 6, 2022 as Arbor Day in Parowan.
SECOND: Councilmember Shurtleff seconded the motion.

VOTE: The Council voted unanimously in favor of the motion. The motion carried.

12. Review/Action on Parowan City Pool Progress with Jones and DeMille Engineering:
Councilmember Downey asked what stage they in in the process. Mayor Pro Tem Topham said they are
in the funding stage. Councilmember Burton added they are at the portion where the city needs to
allow Jones and DeMille to fulfill their contractual responsibilities to secure funding for the pool.

Councilmember Downey asked for clarification regarding the contract. She asked if once the contract
dollar amount has been met, will it cost the city more to obtain their assistance in securing funding?
Mayor Pro Tem Topham said the contract amount is $86,900. She also clarified that when Jones and
DeMille goes out to secure funding, they are not committing the city to anything. She said the CIB
application deadline is October 1%. The meeting with CIB could be anytime in October, November or
December.

Councilmember Shurtleff said the CIB will only give a 50% grant. He asked if we have secured any other
funding. Mayor Pro Tem said they haven’t yet. This is only the beginning of looking for funding.
Councilmember Shurtleff asked then if the action that needs to be taken is to allow Jones and DeMille to
proceed with going after funding. Councilmember Burton said the action is to allow Jones and DeMille
to fulfill their contractual obligations. Councilmember Gale added that they will be able to get some
hard numbers for the council.

Mrs. Judy Schiers, City Treasurer, said with the last invoice we received from Jones and DeMille, the
contract amount has just about been met. Her concern is how long will Jones and DeMille be working
for the city after they pay this last invoice. Mayor Pro Tem Topham said they will work for the city until
they find funding options for them. Mrs. Schiers asked if there is a time period on that. She said she

Parowan City Council Meeting August 25, 2022 — cdb Page 3 of 6



doesn’t want to pay the final payment until they have fulfilled their contract. Mayor Pro Tem Topham
said that they have fulfilled everything but the $2,775.00 that is left on the contract. There is no time
frame in the contract for finding funding. However, the CIB deadline is October 1°. They will also look
for other funding as well, because they are aware of how the CIB works. The contract says that Jones
and DeMille will assist the city in two applications to secure funding for the pool. Mayor Pro Tem
Topham said they are hoping to have other donations secured before the CIB application to show that
there are other contributions being made toward this project.

Councilmember Downey said her only concern is that the city not be charged above and beyond the
contract amount. Councilmember Gale said if we are requiring more from them beyond the scope of
the contract, they certainly would charge the city. He said he would like clarification as to whether the
$2775.00 remaining dollars on the contract is enough to do the CIB and one other application for
funding.

Mayor Pro Tem Topham said that the staff should hold on to the final invoice until the contract has been
fulfilled. The council agreed.

MOTION: Councilmember Gale moved to proceed with the progress on the pool with Jones and DeMille,
not to exceed the present contract amount of $86,900.

SECOND: Councilmember Burton seconded the motion.

VOTE: Councilmember Gale, Councilmember Shurtleff, Councilmember Burton voted AYE on the
motion. Councilmember Downey voted NAY. The motion carried 4-1.

WORK MEETING
13. Reports, Updates, Old Business Follow Up — Officials and Staff:
Councilmember Shurtleff didn’t have any meetings to report on.

Councilmember Gale reported on the Economic Development meeting. He said it was a good meeting.
They had some gentlemen come in from Esco Lighting. They gave a general bid on lighting the baseball
fields. The lights are very expensive, but the information was good and it is something that can be
worked towards in the future. He also reported the economic development committee is moving
forward on the ordinance for their group.

Councilmember Gale said that he and Councilmember Downey attended the UAMPS conference. He
shared some of the things that were discussed at the conference. He said it was very informative and
well worth his time.

Councilmember Downey said the nuclear information presented at UAMPS was very interesting. She
believes this will be the future of the country. She said it will be interesting to see what happens down
the line.

Councilmember Burton gave a shout out to the public works department. He said the Meeks pond is
looking really good. The public works crew has done a great job. He said they also helped the county
get the street roughed in from their parking area from 100 N to 200 N. He said they did a good job.

He asked Mr. Larry Zajac to report on the Planning and Zoning Meeting. He talked about a conditional
use permit that was submitted to the planning and zoning committee to keep an alpaca on an Al zoned

piece of property. They researched it out and approved the conditional use permit. They also approved

Parowan City Council Meeting August 25, 2022 —cdb Page 4 of 6



allowing 4 medium or sheep-sized animals in addition to the 4 horses already there. He said by code,
the 4 horses actually max out the number of animals allowed on a piece of property. He said they may
have erred in granting the conditional use permit with the language allowing for 4 horses plus 1 alpaca.
It should have been more along the lines of 1 alpaca and 3 horses. He said he recommends that the city
asks legal counsel what they think about that, or, if legal counsel finds that to be inappropriate, he
recommends that the matter be brought before the city council, and they decide on their options — deny
the conditional use permit, modify the conditional use language, and still allow the alpaca to be allowed.

The council engaged in a discussion regarding the animal code. They decided that this was more
involved than was appropriate for the member report section of the agenda. Councilmember Gale said
he thought this could be handled by the Planning and Zoning committee.

Councilmember Burton said the Shade Tree committee met regarding the Arbor Day proclamation.
Mayor Halterman arrived at 6:54 p.m.

Mayor Pro Tem Topham reported that she met with Jet Smith about all of the events that have taken
place this summer and how they went, as well as clearing up some issues she was having with the
fairgrounds. She said she thinks they are all moving in the right direction and it is all positive. She
reported that the “Aladdin” play they presented went very well and it had a lot of community support.
The tickets sold out. She is still working on RAP tax and voter information pamphlet. She is also waorking
on the TRT (transient room tax). She will be reaching out to get some help on that.

14. Closed Session (UCA 52-4-204 & 205) to discuss one or more of the following (if necessary):
The character, professional competence or physical or mental health of an individual.

MOTION: Councilmember Downey moved to individual
SECOND: Councilmember Gale seconded the motion.
VOTE: A roll call vote was taken as follows:

AYE  NAY
Councilmember Burton X
Councilmember Topham X
Councilmember Downey X
Councilmember Gale X
Councilmember Shurtleff X

The motion carried. The council moved into closed session at 7:09 p.m.

Present in the closed session: Mayor Halterman, Councilmembers Burton, Downey, Gale, Shurtleff, and
Topham, Attorney Christian Jones.

The council moved out of closed session at 8:30 p.m.
ACTION MEETING

15. Any Action Necessary as a Result of the Closed Session regarding the character, professional
competence or physical or mental health of an individual: No action was taken.

16. Adjournment:

Parowan City Council Meeting August 25, 2022 —cdb Page 5 of 6



MOTION: Councilmember Burton moved to adjourn the meeting.

SECOND: Councilmember Topham seconded the motion.
VOTE: The Council voted unanimously in favor of the motion. The motion carried. The meeting was

adjourned at 8:30 p.m.

Mollie Halterman, Mayor

Callie Bassett, City Recorder

Date Approved:

Parowan City Council Meeting August 25, 2022 —cdb Page 6 of 6



Parowan City Council Meeting
August 26, 2022 - 8:30 a.m.
Parowan City Council Chambers
35 E 100 N, Parowan, UT 84761

HOMETUWS OF
SULTHEHN UTAH

Elected Officials Present: Mayor Mollie Halterman
Councilmember David Burton
Councilmember Sharon Downey
Councilmember Matt Gale
Councilmember Jim Shurtleff
Councilmember Rochell Topham

Interview Board Members Present: Rob Dotson
Steve Decker
Alan Adams
Troy Houston
Christina Harris
Rob Bernhardi

Staff Present: Callie Bassett, City Recorder
Public Present: Ron Clayton

1. Welcome and Call to Order: Mayor Halterman called the meeting to order at 8:30 a.m.

2. Opening Ceremonies: Pastor Rob Bernhardi offered the invocation.

3. Meeting of the Council and Interview Committee:

The council and the interview committee discussed the questions that were to be asked of the
applicants for the position of city manager. Some of the questions were tweaked a little, and the
interview committee was assigned which questions they would ask in the interview process.

4. Closed Session (UCA 52-4-204 & 205): The public was excused and the council and interview board
moved into closed session to discuss the character, professional competence or physical or mental
health of an individual.

Applicants for the position of city manager were interviewed at this time.

The above listed elected officials, interview board members and city staff were present in the closed
session.

The council moved out of closed session at 1:00 p.m.

There was no action taken as a result of the closed session.

Parowan City Council Meeting August 30, 2022 — cdb Page 1 of 2



5. Adjournment:
The meeting was adjourned at 1:00 p.m.

Mollie Halterman, Mayor

Callie Bassett, City Recorder

Date Approved:

Parowan City Council Meeting August 30, 2022 —cdb Page 2 of 2



Parowan City Council Meeting
August 30, 2022 - 2:30 p.m.
Vol Parowan City Council Chambers
me 35 E 100 N, Parowan, UT 84761

HOMETOWA OF
SUUTHEHRN UTAH

Elected Officials Present: Mayaor Mollie Halterman
Councilmember David Burton
Councilmember Sharon Downey
Councilmember Matt Gale (via telephone)
Councilmember Jim Shurtleff
Councilmember Rochell Topham

Interview Board Members Present: Rob Dotson
Steve Decker
Alan Adams
Troy Houston
Christina Harris

Staff Present: Callie Bassett, City Recorder
1. Welcome and Call to Order: Mayor Halterman called the meeting to order at 2:30 p.m.

2. Opening Ceremonies: Mr. Alan Adams offered the invocation.

The council and interview board met to discuss the interviews held August 26, 2022 for the position of
city manager.

3. Closed Session (UCA 52-4-204 & 205) to discuss one or more of the following (if necessary):

The character, professional competence or physical or mental health of an individual; collective
bargaining; pending or reasonably imminent litigation; the purchase, exchange, or lease of real property,
including any form of a water right or water shares; the sale of real property, including any form of
water rights or water shares; deployment of security personnel, devices or systems; investigative
proceedings regarding allegations of criminal misconduct; contract negotiations, the disclosure of which
would be detrimental to the city's bargaining position.

MOTION: Councilmember Downey moved to go into closed session to discuss the character,
professional competence or physical or mental health of an individual.
SECOND: Councilmember Topham seconded the motion.
VOTE: A roll call vote was taken as follows:
AYE NAY  Absent

Councilmember Burton X
Councilmember Topham X
Councilmember Downey X
Councilmember Gale X
Councilmember Shurtleff X

Parowan City Council Meeting August 30, 2022 — cdb Page 1 of 2



The motion carried. The council moved into closed session at 2:35 p.m.

The above listed elected officials, interview board members and city staff were present in the closed
session. Councilmember Gale joined the meeting by telephone.

The council moved out of closed session at 3:40 p.m.
There was no action taken as a result of the closed session

4. Adjournment:

MOTION: Councilmember Downey moved to adjourn the meeting.

SECOND: Councilmember Shurtleff seconded the motion.

VOTE: The Council voted unanimously in favor of the motion. The motion carried. The meeting was
adjourned at 3:40 p.m.

Mollie Halterman, Mayor

Callie Bassett, City Recorder

Date Approved:

Parowan City Council Meeting August 30, 2022 —cdb Page 2 of 2



Nd LECL

056024
0S8°0%$
JONVHNSNI 891j0d - #1L¥S0L uuowe3 ‘2j02IN ‘Awwol ‘eI ‘AppY Sz Ll 2e0z/6Z/80  2202/62/80 LibgnAe £022628 ALIND3 HLTV3AH
JONVHNSNI - ¥LOPLS uyor ‘usydalg UolAL ‘AlleM  00'6 2202/62/80  2202/62/80 LibgnAe £022628 ALIND3 HLTYIH
JONVHNSNI UIWPY - #LE70L foys ‘alieD 05w 2202/62/80  2Z0Z/62/80 LibonAe £0Z7628 ALINDI HLTY3AH
JONVHNSNI - 7LOYES YIN 622 Z202/62/80  ZZ0Z/62/30 LibgnAe £0ZZ628 ALINDI HLIY3IH
JONVHNSNI HNoD - #LZH0L yuey sz'z 2202/62/80  ZZ0Z/6Z/80 LibonAe £0ZZ6Z3 ALINDI HLIY3H
JONVHNSNI B87 - #LLFOL munsnl gz 2202/62/80  2Z0Z/62/80 LibgnAe £022628 ALIND3 HLTV3H
JONVHNSNI $¥ed - 710201 aunsnr Gz'Z 720T/62/80  ZTOT/BZ/80 LibonAe £027628 ALIND3 HLTYIH
IONVHNSNI SIUBAT - 12201 WBr 6ze 2202/62/80  2202/62/80 LibonAe £02Z628 ALIND3 HLY3IH
JONVHNSNI Aelgi - #1601 oD GzZ'Z 2z0z/ezied  2202/62/80 LibonAe £02Z628 ALINO3 HLV3H
JONVHNSNI - 7LOYSS Alig sz ZZ0Z/6T/80  2202/6Z/80 LibonAe £02Z628 ALINDI HLYIH
020V SONIAVS HLIV3IH - 6¥2201 Junoooy sBuIABS WSH  00°G99 T20Z/62/80  TZ0Z/8L/80 0Z.1-222180ud L0Z2628 ALINDI HLYIH
80 VLV LS
ONISSIDOHd VIVA - GS0PES  THLNOW IDIAYIS ONILSOH TIIMAINOH 80'+.4L Z20Z/1E/80  2202/9L/80 0£05/60925 9819¢ 277 ‘SNOILNTOS ¥3LS13
6L9vZ$
JONVHNSNI TYINOTOD - 26220 ) WNINIHd IONVHNSNI 6192 ZTOT/LE/B0  ZZOZ/0E/80 Z¥01L60860€186 5819¢€ 3417 IVINO 10D
80°6.0'Z$
80'6.0'2%
dIND3 OL SHIVATY 34 - 5Z/501 '1d3Q 3414 - MONY1 AY04 HO4 S3IMI4 82°/GT | Z20Z/LE/80  2Z0Z/LE/80 90651009 ¥819¢ OdS ONI ‘IHIL DWD
LININLINDI OL HIVdIY - S20¥ES HITVHL 370d H04 STMIL 0818 Z20Z/Le/80  2Z0Z/0€/80 8Z.51009 ¥819¢ 0dS ONI ‘IHIL DWD
16°LZFS
L6'LZFS
JONVMOTTY WHOSINN - 202G 11dS WHO4INN 8¥°C01 2e0T/LE/80  Z20T/92/80 LL/g96Z L £819¢ SIHOLS HONYY TvD
JONVMOTIV WHOALINN - L L 28 117dS WHOHINN 8+'S0L 220Z/LE/80  ZZ202/9Z/80 LL/g962Z L £819¢ SIHOLS HONVH TvD
JONVYMOTTY WHOLINN - Z¥0FZS 111dS WHO4INN  8F'S0L ZT0Z/LE/I80  Z202/92/80 LL/E96T L £819¢ SIAHOLS HONVY TvD
JONYMOTTY WHOLINN - 2¥0F LS 117dS WHO4INN #7501 zTOZ/LE/B0  Z20Z/92/80 LLIE9BZL £819¢ SIAHOLS HONVY T¥D
00°5E$
OO/NOILYIYITY SIueAT - 022201 03 Y3WNNS - SSY12 INVHOVIN  00°SE 2¢0Z/1E/80  2Z0Z/6Z/80 27026220 Z819¢ 13NVT 'NMOHE
BE0S6'SLS
S98U8dX3 SPUNS YdHVY - 8E0FLG  IAYIS NV1d ¥ILSYIN ¥IMIS ANV YILVM 98°0S6'S) ZT0Z/LE/B0  220T/80/80 £EL6Z L8L9E  JLVIDOSSY B SNITIOD NIMOd
0g'cct$
08'ecL$
S1ISOd3A YIWOLSND -SELEES  IONHE ‘NvId - $9L000001 punyay isodeq 6z¢ 2z0e/Le/80  2202/92/80 69100000} A4 0819¢ JoNyg ‘Nv3g
I1EVAIZDTH SINNODDVY - LLELES 30N¥4d ‘NVY38 - G91.00000L :pundy LG LEL 2Z02/Le/80  2202/0€/80 1000001 -punjey 0819¢ JoNydg ‘Nv3g
00¥2H'8$
00'¥2F'8$
VIMILYIN 3ONYNILNIVIN - 9Z0veS G:00€ DO-8VYr-3dAL 1D - JAY O0ZL 05991 220z/9z/80  220Z/21L/80 00-6¥EYOFS LLLOE T 'SNOILNTOS HIMOd HILXINY
VIMILYIN SONYNILINIVIN - 920¥ES JOIAY3S dNWV 0021 0G67252'8 ZZ0T/92/80  ZZ0Z/0L/80 00-80.20%5 LLLOE T 'SNOILNTOS ¥IMOd HILXINY
jUno22Yy JabpaT uonduasag unowy ajeq ale( labpa Jaquiny JaquinN awepN aaled
juawhed 2910AU]| do10AUL| 20UIBIY

2202/10/60 03 ZZ0Z/SZ/80 - Bunjaay) jessusn

19)s16ay yoayn

)9 uemouey



z abey

00°€L6$
® TYNOISSIH0Hd Ateiqrt - LESL01 AdVHEIT - 43 LNdNOD dO1MS3IA 00°€46 2¢02/9¢/80 220¢/e¢/80 68L9.L €L19¢ SHILNANOD LSIM NIVLNNOW
25°89¢$ :
J79VAVd LINJWIHILIY - 0£2201 Ayngesig wis) Buo gg'gos 2c0¢e/62/80 2c02/81/80 ¥GE-¢2c180dd 8219€ HOO0Hd ALINIGYSIA WH3L 9ONOT
0t'8.6$
S3NddNS 301440 8910d - ¥Z¥S0L 30 IDI10d - IDHO0ID LS SWD v# HvIA L 0F'8.S Zc0Z/1E/80 2¢0¢/92/80 48662113 681L9¢ ANVYHWOD NOST0 s371
GCLELS
SZ'LELS
JTGVAVYd TT10HAVA/OSIN - G¥220L uonosjold Ayuap| pleys al Gz'Lg 2e0e/62/80 €c0c/81/80 6€.9-222180¥d £219¢ an3aHs dl - an3aizS 1vodan
JTAVAVd T10HAVA/OSIN - S¥2eol uonosjold Ayjuap| pleiys al 6L ¢e0e/62/80 2¢0¢/v0/80 6€29-¢C1eL0Hd £219¢ an3aHs dl - an3izS Tvodan
FTGVAVd T10HAVA/OSIN - G¥2Z0L uonosjold Ayusp| pleiys al Gz'Lg ¢e0e/6e/80 ¢c0¢/v0/80 6€.9-2¢62.0Hd L119¢ an3IHsS dl - a3aHS 1vo3an
00°0.5$
00°04G%
VN IONVYNILNIVIA SMied - 920401 - SN1d 0071 1SIML A0CT AWV 02 d3aav ¢.'0v ¢c0g/LE/BD ¢c0¢/e2/90 ALID NYMO MV 89819¢ JHL237d ISNIr
‘IONVYNILNIVIA O SSBID - 921901 - SN1d ¥3071 1SIML A0ZZ AWV 02 d3aav 2. 0¥ ¢c0c/LEBD ¢c0c/ee/90 ALID NYAMOUVYd 8819¢ JHLO0373 ISNAr
VIN IONYNILNIVIN 10USIA - 926501 - SN1d M0071 1SIML A0ZZ AWV 02 d3aav 2/ 0 2e0e/LE/BD ¢c0c/ee/90 ALID NYMO YV 8819€ O1d1D2373 ISN3r
1VIN IONYNILNIVIN @i - 922601 - SN1d M0071 1SIML A0ZZ AWV 02 d3aav 2. 0% 2e0e/LE/BD 2¢c0¢/€¢/90 ALID NVYMO YV 8819¢ JIHL12373 ISN3r
YIN IONVYNILNIVIA 82llod - 92#501L - SN1d X201 LSIML A0ZZ AWV 02 d3aav 2. 0% 2e0e/1LEe/80 ¢c0c/eeg/90 ALID NYMO XV 8819¢ OI4123713 ISNar
YIN IONVYNILNIVIA ulwpy - 9ZEt0L - SN1d Y007 LSIML A0ZZ dWY 02 d3aavy  Z.20v 2e0e/Le/80 2e0e/ee/90 ALID NYMOYVd 8819¢ JIY123713 ISNar
VId31LVIN IONYNILNIVIA - 920v4S - SNd X007 LSIML A0ZZ dINY 02 A3aavY L2 °0F 2e0e/1Le/80 2¢0e/ee/90 ALID NVMOUVd 8819¢ OI¥12313 3ISNar
VIH3LVYIN IONVYNILNIVIN - 9201SS - SN1d Y007 1SIML A0ZZ WY 02 g3aav L2 0¥ 2e0z/1Le/80 2c0e/ee/90 ALID NVMOYYd 8819¢ el iR ERER=ISNE]Y
VIHILVYIN IONVYNILNIVIN - 9Z0FES - SN1d ¥007 1SIML A0ZZ JWV 02 a3aav L2 0¥ ¢c0¢/1LE/80 ¢c02/EE/90 ALID NVMOYVYd 8819¢ OI4L1D373 ISNAr
VIHILVYIN IONVYNILNIVIA - 921+2S - 8SN1d MO0 LSIML ADZZ dWV 02 a3aay L2 0¥ 2e0e/Le/80 2e0e/ee/90 ALID NYAMOYVd 8819¢ O14.L0313 asNar
VIH3LYIN SONVYNILNIVIA - 920%ZS - SNTd X001 LSIML AOZZ dINY 0Z A3aAY L2 0 2e0e/1e/80 ¢e02/e2/90 ALID NYMOYVYd 8819¢ J14.103713 ISNAr
ANV S317ddNS 321440 - v2obLs - SMNd X007 LSIML ADZZ dINVY 02 d3QaV L2 0 ¢C0C/LEIBD ¢20c/Ee/90 ALID NVYMOYVYd 8819¢ OIdL103173 3SNar
JONVYNILNIVIA Aejawa) - 920801 - SM1d MO0 1SIML ADZZ ANV 02 A30av  LL0F ¢c0C/LEIBD ¢e0e/ee/90 ALID NYMOYYd 8819¢ OIdL0313 3SN3r
NYNILNIVIN Spunoig Jleq - 9z1 /01 - SN71d MO0 1SIML ADZZ ANV 02 d3aaY  LL0F ¢c0c/LE/BD ¢e0er/ee/90 ALID NYMOYVYd 8819¢€ J1dL10313 ISNAr
00°96L°L$
00'961L°L$
VIHILYIN IONYNILNIVN - 9Z0FES AS0E-G0LHLNODOLOHd ¥D011SIML 00°0¥2 ¢c02/9¢/80 €c0c/ec/80 L00°'£98951€L0S ¢L19¢ Agdl
VIHILYIN SONYNILNIVIN - 9207ES 1NOLND 9deLLl0LLdD SdH 00918 2¢0¢/92/80 2c0e/L1/80 L000€58LLELOS 2L19¢ Agdl
VIHILYIN SONVYNILNIVIN - 920FES 04 ANO dLD ND 9X8/5 9529 ATVD 00 0FL 220¢/9¢/80 2c0g/L1/80 700" ¥66.£0€1L0S cll9¢e Agdl
vevees
vevees
JONVMOTTIY WHOALINN - L+0FLS 1INdS WHO4INN  Se'er Zcoe/Le/80 2c02/61/80 LEVICLLLOL 48L9€ SV SHIWYV4 NIVLNNOWHILNI
JONVMOTTY WHOLINN - LF01 LG 1I7dS WHOLINN  $E'ev 2c0c/Le/80 ¢c02/61/80 LEVICLLLOL L8L9€ SV SHIWHVH NIVINNOWHILNI
FONVMOTTIY WHOLINN - L¥L1ES 1INdS WHO4INN  teer 2€c0e/Le/g0 220e/61/80 LEV92LLLOL 4819€ SV SHINHVL NIVLNNOWHILNI
JONVYMOTIV WHOLINN - 2+0¥2S 1INdS WHOLINN  vEe €c0e/Le/s0 2202/61/80 LEVICLLLOL /8l9€ SV SHIWYVH NIVLNNOWYHILNI
JONVMOTTY WHO4LINN - 2+01LS LINdS WHOLINN 62721 ¢c0¢/1E/80 ¢c02/91/80 S6180421L01 £8L9E SV SYINWYVH NIVLNNOWHILNI
FONVMOTIVY WHOALINN - LF0t LS 1I7dS WHOLINN $2°21 ¢c0e/Le/80 2202/91/80 S6180LL101 18198 SV SHIWYHVH NIVLNNOWXHILNI
JONYMOTIV WHOSHINN - L¥LPZS 1NdS WHOLINN #2721 ¢c0e/Le/80 2202/91/80 S61L80LL101 1819E SV SHIWHVL NIVLNNOWNILNI
JONVMOTIY WHOLINN - 2+0¥25 1INdS WHOLINN #4721 €c0Z/1LE/80 2202/91/80 G61L80LL10L /8l9€ SV SHIWHVYA NIVLNNOWYILNI
junoooy Jabpaq uopidioseq junowy ajeq ajeq Jabpen RquIny Jlagquinn aweN aalked
juswAhed aoloAU] 3210AU| asualajey

2202/L0/60 01 2202/52/80 - Bunjoayy |essuan
J9)s1Bay yoeyo

A3 uemoled



¢ abey
L0790°16$
ISYHIHINd HIMOJ - 0S0¥ES JSVHIHUNd ¥3IMOd 2202 AN L0°'+90°L6 €¢0¢/1€/80 €¢0c/Se/80 ¢c0e4¢80 S619¢ SdNVN

€L'0L$
LINIWIND3 OL HIVd3Y -G20¥LS  SdITO /M Av3T LS3L ‘dITO LSIL AYILIVE 169l 2z0z/Le/80 2e0z/se/s0 9/€LLG P6L9E  S1YV¥d OLNY HOIMHI4NS SHMNIL
[4AA%
ININGINDT OL HIvd3d - STOrES wadinb3 oy suedey - yidg doyg 89’9 €e0z/9z2/80 ¢c0c/ee/80 LB6ZLLS S§/19€  S1YVd OLNY HOIMIdNS SHUNIL
NINWJIND3 OL SHIVdIY - §21¥ZS ualudinb3 o3 sieday - yidg doys 999 ¢20¢/92/380 €e0z/ee/80 LB6ZLLS SLL9E  S1HVd OLNV HOIYIdNS SHUNIL
IN3ININDIT OL HIVd3AY - G20¥2S uswdinb3 oy sureday - Jidg doys 99°9 £202/92/80 2202/€2/80 LB6ZLLG GLL9E  S1HVd OLNV HOIY3IdNS SHUNIL
ANINGINDT OL HIvd3Y - S20vLS wswdinb3 o} suiedey - yids doys 99°9 €20¢/9Z/80 ¢202/€2/80 LBZLLS SLL98  S1YVvd OLNV HOIE3IdNS SHUNIL
INO3 O1 HIVd3d O sse|D - 2190} juswdinb3 oy sureday - Jids doys  99°9 €20¢/92/80 ¢c0e/€2/80 LBZLLG GLLO9E  S1YVd OLNVY HOIY3IdNS SHNIL
VIJILVYIN IONYNILNIVIN - 920¥LS Juswdinb3 o) siieday - yidg doyg 99'9 €20¢/9¢/80 ¢c02/€2/80 LB6ZLLS SLL9E  S1YVd OLNV HOIY3IdNS SHNIL
VIFILYIN SONVYNILNIVIN - 9ZL¥ES 1I1dS - s3l¥3L1vg 299 2¢0¢/9¢/80 ¢c02/2e/80 zZ0zZlLS G198  S1YVvd OLNV HOI™3dNS SMNIL
VIM3LYIN IONVYNILNIVIN - 92025 11ds -s31d3llva 299 €202/92/80 €c02/zeT/80 rdorARE G198  S1dVd OLNY HOIH34NS SHUNIL
YT 'Z6¥'5L$
YZ'T6P'GLE
J19VAVd ¥OId - L2220 xel AlUnoag [e100s 9y i/ ¢c0¢/10/60 ¢c0z/10/60 ¥¢y-¢Z1e80dd L0Ccl06 LN NY3IHLNOS 40 MNvVE JLVLS
ONIATOHHLIM TvY3d34 - 22zzol Xge| awoou| [elspad 80'gLZ 2c0z/10/60 2z0z/10/60 ¥er-22Le804d L02ZL06 1N NY3IHLNOS 40 MNvd J1VIS
J18VAvYd YOId - LZgzol Xe] aledlpaN QL't/ L 2Z0e/1L0/60 2g0z/10/60 yev-eclesoydd 10Ccl06 LN NY3IHLNOS 40 MNvE JLVLS
3189VAVd VYOI - LZZ20L xe| AJunoag [Bl00S i 0¥8'L €20e/10/60 220Z/10/60 Y2¥-¢292804dd L02cl06 LN NY3IHLNOS 40 MNvE JLVLS
ONIQTOHHLIM TvY3d34 - 2z2eol Xg| awoou| [elaped 91189y 2202/10/60 220z/10/60 yer-2292804dd 1022106 LN NYIHLNOS 4O MNvd J1V1S
J19VAVd VOId - L2zeolL Xg| 2ledlpay 0L'€E8’L Ze0z/10/60 2z0z/10/60 Yev-¢¢9e80dd L02Cl06 LN NYIHLNOS 40 MNvE JLVLS
6V ¥Z0'v$
d1S O1 SHIvd3aYd O ssejD - 0£1901L IVIH3LVIN 4D 6720 2e0z/Le/80 2z0z/91/80 66.¥065 €6L9€ SIINVAWOD NOSHVC 8 HIMVLS
LEVOLS
H93730 TVIO3dS siueAl - 892201 MIIAYILNI HIDVYNYW ALID HOH SMOVYNS ZE+0L €e0e/Le/80 €c02/92/80 €Z029z280 2619¢ HIHIVIH 4437114NHS
00°9L¥LS
OHS HOINIANQOS J0UsIA - 626501 HINGANOS - ¥ILNID HOLISIA NYMOHYd 00'9Lt'L 2202/1£/30 €c02/9¢/80 €20292380 1619 00 d3d - NOSNIGOY JIHY3IHS
zeoles
zcolzs
VIH3LYIN SONVNILNIVIA - 9ZL¥2G LI7dS - FOIOANI TWLNIH H3ANITAD 0925 Zz0z/1€/80 €c0c/G1/80 Z6E8E0EOHH 0619¢ S10NA0dd NIZTOHDS
YIH3LVYIN SONVYNILNIVIA - 920¥/G 1I1dS dOHS 0t'9 2z0z/1€/20 €c0c/51/80 Z6EQE0E0YH 0619¢ $10NAoyd N3ZT0HOS
YIH3LYIN IONVYNILNIVIN - 920+ES 1I1dS dOHS 0t'9 Z20z/1£/20 ¢202/51/80 C6E8E0E0YH 0619¢€ $10NAaocyd NIZT0OHDS
VId3LVYIN IONVYNILNIVIN - 921128 1NdS dOHS 0’9 €z0z/1£/280 ¢c0c/51/80 C6E8E0E0YH 0619¢ S10NAaoyd NIZTOHDS
VIY3LVYIN JONYNILNIVIN - 920%2S 1INdS dOHS  0t'9 ¢coz/LE/80 ¢¢0g/S1/80 ¢6E8E0E0YH 0619¢€ S10NAo¥yd NIZTOHDS
VIFILYIN JONYNILNIVIN - 9207 LS 1I1dS dOHS 09 ¢coz/Le/g0 ¢20z/s1/80 C6E8E0E0HH 0619¢€ $10NAo¥d NIZTOHIS
JONVNILNIVIN D sse|D - 921301 117dS dOHS 0F'9 €c0z/LE/80 €20z/S1/80 Z6E8E0E0HH 06L9¢€ $S10NAo¥d NIZTOHDS
VIH3LVIN SONYNILNIVIN - 920%LS 1 HO4 370AVYS SS 'SONILLIL 'STHONITHM 1125 ¢c0e/LE/80 ¢¢0z/31/80 10-0120899 0619¢ $10NAao¥d NIZT0OHIS
VIY3LYIN JONYNILNIVIN - 9207LS 1 ¥04 370AVS SS 'SONILLIS ‘STHONIHM  LL°JG 220e/1E/80 2202/91/80 10-0120899 061L9¢ $10NAaodd NIZT0OHIS
S6°5$
VIN SONVYNILINIVIN UIWPY - 9ZE+0L ONIQJ3IYHS INTFWNOO0A S6'FS 2¢02/92/30 2202/52/80 SvIS1 ¥219€ ONIQJIHHS SINOLS3IHd
junosoy Iabpan uonduasag junowy ajeq ajeq 1sbpaq laquinN JaquinN sweN aakeg
juawfey a210AU| aoloAu| CLIEIETEN|

2202/L0/60 03 2Z0Z/SZ/80 - Bunjoayy elsusn
191s1bay yoayo
AN uemoued



65cEY’

(44

65'eer'zcs
J1GVAVd LNIJWIHILIY - 0£220L uswiainey |1.ls  ¢8'6L9'vl ¢c0e/6e/80 ¢c0e/81/80 18%-2¢Zz180dd ¢0cc6e8 SWALSAS LNIWIHILTIHE HVLN
J18VAVd LINIJWIHILTY - 0€2201 UEId 0¥ 68F98'C ¢c0c/6e/80 ¢c02/81/80 18%-¢2e1804d c0ce6e8 SWILSAS INJWIHILIH HVYLN
J19VAVd LINJWIHILIY - 0€2201 Ueld /St tL'9gE'C ¢coc/6g/80  TT0T/8L/80 18¥%-¢Ze1804d c0ceees SWILSAS INIWIHILIY HVYLN
J19VAVd LNIFWIHILTY - 0€2201 ueoT qLO¥ €L'280'lL ¢coz/6e/80  2c0e/8l/s0 18Y-22Z1804d c0ceees SWILSAS INIWIHILIY HVLN
J18VAVYd INIWIHILIY - 0€2201 vl Wod  00°0Et £coe/ee/80  ZZ0z/8L/80 18%-2ce180dd c0ceees SWILSAS INIWIHILIY HVLN
J19VAVd INIJWIHILTH - 0€2201 [BUOHIpUBIL Y| Y10 00001 €c0c/6e/80  Z20e/8L/80 18¥-22Z180ud [AVAATA SWILSAS INIWIHILIY HYLN
2T'S86°E$
Z7'586'€$
SNIJNOD SINIFWMHOM - 9L0¥ES dNOD SHIHHJOM 6EELE £¢02/92/80 ccoe/ziigo HHOM 6871091 9/19€ L SINIWNHIAOD T¥I0T HVLN
NOJ S.INFWHHOM 221l0d - 91+501 dNOD SHIHNHOM £0Z6L €¢0¢/92/80 €coe/elL/so HHOM 68171091 9/19€ L SINIWNYINOD Tv30T HVLN
SN3IJWOD SINIFWHHOM - 9L0FLS dNOD SHIMHOM 9E°G8 €20¢/9¢/80 2c0z/cLi80 HHOM 6871091 9/19¢ L SINIANHIAOD w301 HYLN
WOD SINFAMNHOM UWpY - 9LERO| dINOD SHIHHOM 20'+9 €c0e/92/80 €e0z/eisn MHOM 6871091 9/19¢ L SINIWNHIAQOD V30T HVLN
dINOD SINFWHHOM 8ll4 - 912501 dNOD SHIHHOM SE'ES 2¢0z/92/380 €eoz/zL/sn HHJOM 68171091 92198 L SINIWNHIAOD TvI01 HVYLN
1YSNIdWOD SHIHHOM - 9LLPZS dNOD SIHNHOM  LO'8Y ¢c0c/9e/80 €e0z/z1L/80 HMHOM 6871091 919€ L SINIWNHIAOD TvI0T HYLN
SNIJWOD SINTFWHHOM - 9L0t2S dNOD SHIMHOM  LO'8F €c0c/9e/80 €e0z/z1/80 HMHOM 68+1091L 92198 L SINJWNHIAOD Tv¥I0T HVLN
WOD SINIIWHHOM sxied - 910401 dNOD SHIHHOM 89°¢t €c0e/92/80 €c0e/z 180 HHOM 6811091 92198 L SINJWNYIAOD TvI0T HVYLN
00 SNYWMHOM O sse|D - 911901 dNOD SHIHIOM 89°¢H ¢€c0c/9e/80 [AAVATATE]Y HHOM 68171091 9219¢ 1 SINIFWNYIAOD VIO HYLN
SNIJNOD SINFWHHOM - 9L0F.LG diNOD SHIHHOM 1L0TE ¢¢0c/9¢/80 2c0e/eliso HHOM 6811091 92198 1 SINIWNYIAOD TvI0OT HYLN
SNIdNOD SINFIWHHOM - 9L0FSS dNOD SHIMHIOM L0Z¢ ¢c0e/92/80 [AAVATATE) HHOM 6811091 92198 1 SINIFWNYIAOD TvI0OT HYLN
02 SINFWMHOM Aredar] - 915201 dNOD SHIMHIOM L02¢E ¢c0e/92/80 €¢0z/z1L/80 MHOM 68%1091L 94192 L SINIJNNYIAOO TvI0T HYLN
dNOD SHIMHOM SsueAl - 91z.01 dNOD SHIMHIOM L0oZE ¢c0e/92/80 €¢0z/z1L/80 HMHOM 6811091 9419 L SINJNNHIA0O TvO0T HYLN
dNOD S HIHHOM JOUSIA - 9LBS0L dNOD SHIHHOM  L0'ZE ¢e0e/9e/80 AT AT HHOM 68%L091L 92192 1 SINIWNYIAOD TWIOT HYLN
NOD SINTFIWHHOM HNneD - 9LZr0L dNOD SHIAHOM LO'CE ¢c0c/9c/80 €20eg/21/80 HHOM 6811091 92192 1 SINJNNHIAOD TvIOT HYLN
dWOD SHINHOM Hodiy - 915801 dNOD SHIMHOM PE'LE ¢c0c/9¢/80  €20¢/2L/80 AHOM 6811091 9219¢ 1 SININNYIAOD T¥I0OT HVYLN
O SINTWMHOM Mslewa) - 910801 dNOD SHIHIOM $E'LE ¢c0e/92/80  220Z/ZL/80 HYOM 6811091 9219€ 1 SINIFWNYIAOCD TWOOT HVYLN
SHINHOM spunois died - 911201 dNOD SHINHOM #E°LE £c0z/9z/80  Zz0c/ZL/s0 HHOM 6811091 9/19¢ 1 SINTFWNYIAOD T¥IOT HVLN
dNOD SINJWHHOM Z'8d - 918501 dNOD SHINHOM #E°LE ¢c0e/9¢/80  Z202/ZL/80 HHOM 681091 9/19¢ 1 SINTFWNY3IAOD TvIOT HVLN
3d0dd INSNI ALNIGVIT - LS0PLS INFNLSNrav AL43d0dd 8L'+v9 ¢c0¢/9¢/80  €¢0c/eL/80 3d0dd 88¥L091 9219¢ 1 SINJWNYIAOD TWIOT HYLN
JFONVHNSNI Ulwpy - #LEF0L 117dS - IDI0ANI ADIMOd LI43N3F LY Lol ¢c02/92/80  2coz/eL/en 43N39 £8%1091 9219€ 1 SINIFWNYIAOD T¥OOT HVYLN
JONVHNSNI - #LOPES 117dS - IDI0ANI ADIT0d LI43N3E  0F'99 €e02/92/80 ¢coz/clL/80 43N39 £8%109L 9.19¢ 1 SINJAWNHIAOD TWIOT HVYLN
JONVHNSNI - #LOPLS L1I1dS - IDIOANI ADITOd LI43INIEG +87€S €g02/92/80 ¢c0z/ZL/80 43N38 £8%1091 92192 1 SINFWNYIAOCD TWI0T HVYLN
JONVHNSNI - #LL¥2S 117dS - IDI0ANI ADITOd LI43N39 Ge'Lv ¢c02/92/80 ¢e0zg/T1/80 43N39 £8¥L091L 9.19€ L SINJFWNH3IAOD T¥IO0T HVYLN
JONVHNSNI - #10¥2S 111dS - IDIOANI ADITOd LI4INTG  SE°Lv €¢0¢/9¢/80 ¢c0e/cL/80 43N33 £8%1091L 9/19€ L SINJWNY3IAOD TvOOT HVYLN
JFONVHNSNI - 7L0¥.LS 11dS - IDI0ANI ADITOd LI43N3IG €74 2¢02/9¢/80 ¢coe/clL/80 43N38 2871091 92192 1 SINJWNAIAOD TvOO01 HVYLN
JONVHNSNI Aerewia) - 110801 111dS - 3DIOANI ADITOd LI4INIE 686€ 2202¢/92/80 €c0z/zL/80 43N39 871091 92192 1 SINIJANYIAOD TWIOO0T HVLN
JONVHNSNI O sse[D - ¥1L1901 1117dS - 3DIOANI ADITOd LI4INIG §e2¢ ¢¢0¢2/9¢/80 ¢c0e/clL/80 43N39 871091 9219¢ L SINJANYIAOD TW¥IO01 HVYLN
JONVHNSNI s¥ed - #1001 LI7dS - IDIOANI ADITOd LI43INIE 05702 £¢02/9¢/80 ¢20e/z1/80 43N39 £8%1091 9219¢ 1 SINFANYIAOCD T¥IOT HVLN
JONVHNSNI - #10¥SS 117dS - 30IOANI ADITOd LI4IN3E Z¥'91 €z02/9¢/80 ¢c0eg/cL/80 43N349 2871091 9219€ 1 SINIWNYIAOD T¥I0T HVLN
HNSNI Y3 LNID HOLISIA - #LBS0L 1I1dS - IDI0OANI ADITOd LId3ANIE 696 €c0e/9¢/80 ¢c0c/TL/80 43N39 £8%1091 92192 1 SINIWNYIAOD TVIOT HVLN
JONVHNSNI HNOD - $1Z10L LI1dS - IOIOANI ADIT0d LI4ANIE 696 ¢c0e/9e/80 ¢c0e/TlL/80 43N39 /871091 9198 1 SINIFWNYIAOD TVOOT HVLN
JONVYNSNI B9 - #LLEFOL 1MdS - ADI0OANI ADITOd LI43ANTD 69'6 ¢202¢/9¢/80 ¢c0c/Z1/80 43N39 /871091 9219 1 SININNYIAOD T¥IOT HVLN
JONVHNSNI Areiqr - $15201 1ITdS - IDI0OANI ADIT0d LI43ANIE €v'6 £20¢/9¢/80 ¢c0ci/ZL/80 43N34 871091 9192 1 SINIWNHIAOD T¥IOT HVLN
JONVENSNI Z3d - v18S0L 1I7dS - FOIOANI ADITOd LI43NTD #8'% 2c0¢/9¢/80 ¢cozi/ZL/80 43N39 /871091 9/19€ 1 SLNIWNYIAOD TVIOT HVLN
JONVHNSNI 82110d - #L¥S0L 1I7dS - IDIOANI ADITOd LI43ANTT #2704~ €c0¢/9¢/80 ¢c0z/g1L/80 43N39 /871091 9/19€ 1 SINIWNYIAOD T¥IO0T HVLN
VHNSNI ALITIEYIT Hodary - 55801 AJIN0d LHOdHIV 82'886°L €c02/92/80  220e¢/Z1L/80 Od¥Iv 98¥1091 9219¢ 1 SINIWNYIAOD T¥OOT HVLN
d ALITIGYIT IONVAENSNI - LGL201L FOIOANI ADITOd ALYIHONd 81'G6S ¢e0g/9z/80  ZZ0Z/Z1/80 dOdd L-£96651 9.19¢ 1 SINIWNYIAOD T¥O0T HVLN
d ALITIEVIT IONVHNSNI - LGL20L ANTFWLSNrav ALY3dOdd LE'SLL- ¢c0c/92/80  ZZ0ZT/ZL/80 SS¥L9G1 9/19€ 1 SLNIWNHIAOD TVD0T HVLN
Junoday Jabpad uondussag junowy ajeq 9)eQ Jabpen isquinN JaquinN aweN aaAed
juswiey ao10AU| 8210AU] Qoualajey

2202/L0/60 03 2202/52/80 - Bunjday) [essuan

l9ys1Bay yoayn

Ajo uemouey



G abey

PL¥L8'8LLS
¥5°96v$
S 9679
INOHJITIL 921j0d - 82+S0L SAYVO VIVA/SINOH 1130 61082 ceOe/Le/s0  ge0z/Lz/se0 L00G86¢ 166 9619¢ SSITIHIM NOZIMIA
INOHJ3T13L Aeigi - 825201 NVIMYHEIT - INOHd 1130 222 ZZ0C/LE/BD  ZZ0T/LE/80 /00586166 9619¢ SSTTI™IM NOZIMAA
INOHJ3TAL - 8ZL+2G 117dS - SMHYOM 2178Nd - INOHd 1130 96°2¢ ¢c0T/Le/80  220e/Le/s0 £00586£166 9619¢ SSITIHIM NOZIY3IA
INOHd3131 - 820v.S 1I1dS - SHHYOM 2118Nd - INOHd 113D S6'ZE ¢e0e/1LE/80 220¢/1¢/80 200G86¢£166 9619¢ SSIATIHIM NOZIH3IA
INOHJ3 1AL - 820%2S 1NdS - SMYOM 2118Nd - INOHd 1130 S6°2E 220g/Le/80  2202/LE/80 005865166 9619¢ SSIATIHIM NOZIYIA
INOHd3 1AL - 820¥1LS 11dS - SMH0M 2178Nd - INOHd 1130 S6°2€ 2c0g/Le/80  220Z/Le/80 £00G86£166 9619¢ SSIATIHIM NOZI¥IA
INOHJITIL JONSIA - 826S0 1L 1MdS - HLINS 137 - 3NOHd 1130 #L°LE ¢c0Z/1Le/I80  220T/Le/80 £00S86£166 9619¢ SSITIHIM NOZI¥IA
INOHJITIL sueag - gZzZ.01 17dS - HLIWS 13r- 3NOHd 1132 €1°Le ZZ0Z/LE/B0  Z20Z/LZ/80 £00S86£166 9619¢ SSITIHIM NOZINIA
18°056'G$
£/8°056'6$
VYd ONIJTOHHLIM J1VLS - £22201L Xg| swoou| 8jels $9'GLY'E 2202/6¢/80 2202/81/80 061-222180%d 6/19€  NOISSINWOD XVL F1¥LS HYLN
VYd ONITOHHLIM J1VLS - £22201 X[ swWoou| 9)e1s  ZytLl 2202/62/80 220Z/%0/80 06%-2Z21£404d 6/19€  NOISSINWOD XVL F1VLS HVYLN
¥Yd ONIGTOHHLIM J1VLS - £22201 XE| SWodu| 9)e)S L8 0ZY'Z 220z/62/80 2202/+0/80 06¥-2262.04d 6/19€  NOISSINWOD XVL F1VLS HYLN
JunodoYy JabpaT uonduosag junowy sjeq ajeq 1abpa Jlaquinn laquinn aweN asAed
juawied 8210AU]| 9210AU| ERIEYETENY

220Z/L0/60 ©3 ZZ0Z/ST/80 - Bupjosy) |essuss
191s1Bay yoayn

A9 uemoled



Headstone Restoration Created on: 8/17/2022

-ﬂ HEADSTONE 2133 W Heather Ln
3 -

ST AT Cedar City, UT 84720

RESTORATION (435) 865-7343

HeadstoneRestoration.com  435-865-7343

Account #100350
Parowan City Memorials & Heritage Park

Estimate

Service Location Information

Account [100350] Parowan City Service Contact Mollie Halterman, Mayor
Memorials & Heritage Park

Service Address S Main St, Parowan, UT 84761

Service Information

Services Qty Rate Price Initials

Initial Cleaning 1 visit $2,250.00 / visit ~ $2,250.00

Monument and base are acid washed and
scrubbed, polished with glass foam cleanstone,
rinsed with clean water and wiped clean to
polished finish with microfiber cloth.

Parowan City Veterans Memorial: This Memorial
will need to be cleaned from top to bottom. it will
receive our Acid Wash and Color Correction
Treatment, along with any rust removal necessary

Cost to clean granite Memorial- *$2250

Initial Bronze Care 1 visit $1,200.00 / visit  $1,200.00

Bronze Plagues are scrubbed with non-lonic &
other cleaning solution. Rinsed and dried to
prepare for wax. Wax is applied with either hot or
cold waxing methods, then buffed to restore
original colors of the bronze and Paint. Cost for
just cleaning and a layer of protective wax is
*$750

**If the plaques need to be repainted and receive
a new clear coat the cost will be $1200

*Headstone Restoration is not responsible for any
pre-existing damage to monuments, Plaques or
sculptures. Pictures will be taken before and after
work is started to document any pre-existing
imperfections/damage. Headstone Restoration
only uses industry approved cleaning/waxing
tools and methods.

Subtotal: $3,450.00
Tax: $0.00
Total: $3,450.00

Pana 1 nf?



Acceptance of Estimate - The above prices, specifications, and conditions are hereby accepted. The Company is
authorized to perform the work specified. Upon acceptance, please sign, date, and return a copy to our office.

Thank you for the opportunity to serve you!

Pana 2 nf 2



Headstone Restoration Created on: 8/17/2022

il HEADSTONE 2133 W Heather Ln

L — ] RESTORATION (555’735

HeadstoneRestoration.com  435-865-7343

Account #100350
Parowan City Memorials & Heritage Park

Estimate

Service Location Information

Account [100350] Parowan City Service Contact Mollie Halterman, Mayor
Memorials & Heritage Park

Service Address 19 W Old Hwy 91, Parowan, UT

84761
Service Information
Services Qty Rate Price Initials
Initial Bronze Care 1 visit $8,450.00 / visit  $8,450.00

Bronze statue is scrubbed with non-lonic cleaning
solution. Rinsed and dried to prepare for wax.
Wax is applied with either hot or cold waxing
methods, then buffed to restore original colors of
the patina. Bronze Plaques will be cleaned using
industry approved cleaners, then wax will be
applied to protect the clear coat and paint.

Welcome to the birthplace of Southern Utah
Statue- *$1900

Bronze Plaques below Birthplace Monument-
*$125 Per Plaque or $425 for total restoration
Circular bronze monuments-*$900 per monument
Parley P. Pratt Statue & Plaque- *$750 +$200 if
plague needs total restoration

Paulina Eliza Phelps Lyman Statue & Plaque-
*$750 +$200 if plaque needs total restoration
Bronze Statue for Bodil Mortensen- *$450
Other Miscellaneous Bronze Plaques- *$500 +
$200 per plaque if it needs total restoration

Initial Cleaning 1 visit $175.00 / visit $175.00

Monument and base is acid washed and
scrubbed, polished with glass foam cleanstone,
rinsed with distilled water and wiped clean to
polished finish with microfiber cloth. Foundation
edged with trimmer and debris removed.

Tribute to Bodil Mortensen Granite Memorial-
*$175

Graphics Restoration 1 visit $100.00 / visit $100.00

Paint text & graphics on Bodil Mortensen Granite
Memorial- *$100

Pana 1 nf?



Repairs 1 visit $1,500.00 / visit  $1,500.00

Problem: Raised Natural Stone Platform for the
Bodil Mortensen Bronze statue is starting to fall
apart. Platform will need attention before further
damage continues

Repair: Masons will re attach existing natural
stone pieces to platform then re grout around the
stone pieces.

**Headstone Restoration is not responsible for
any pre-existing damage to monuments, Plaques
or sculptures. Pictures will be taken before and
after work is started to document any pre-existing
imperfections/damage. Headstone Restoration
only uses industry approved cleaning/waxing
tools and methods.

Subtotal: $10,225.00
Tax: $0.00
Total: $10,225.00

Acceptance of Estimate - The above prices, specifications, and conditions are hereby accepted. The Company is
authorized to perform the work specified. Upcn acceptance, please sign, date, and return a copy to our office.

Thank you for the opportunity to serve you!

Pana 2 nf 2



FFKR ARCHITECTS

PROPOSAL of Architectural and Engineering Services 3/25/2022

Ken Lamberton
Parowan City

RE: Parowan Old Rock Church Rehabilitation FFKR # 20000-001
A. IDENTIFICATION
1. This project consists of the rehabilitation of the Old Rock Church in Parowan, Utah.

B.

1.

C.

o o e

—

a. This proposal encompasses the scope of work for the following:

i. As-builts drawings of all existing buildings

ii. Priority 1 Tasks:

1. Belfry reconstruction / Rehabilitation

Exterior rehabilitation work: Exterior wood repair/replacement, exterior painting, etc.
Voluntary Seismic / Structural Upgrade
Exterior Windows/Doors: Repair / rehabilitation
Foundation Repair: repointing stone masonry, waterproofing foundation
Masonry / Stucco (Repair)

7. Roofing (sheathing, roofing paper, asphalt shingles)
iii. Priority 2 Tasks:

1. M/E/P (Mechanical / Electrical/ Plumbing)

2. Interior rehabilitation work: Floor repair/reinstallation, interior wood repair

/replacement, interior painting, etc.

iv. Priority 3 Tasks:

1. Ramp to Basement Level
Porch upgrades
Elevator / Addition
Porch accessibility upgrades
Site Work: ADA sidewalks, irrigation, landscaping, etc.

oo s W

Al ol

SERVICES
Full A/E Design Services
a. Architectural Design
b.  Structural Engineering
c. Mechanical / Electrical / Plumbing Engineering
d. Civil Engineering

DELIVERABLES
As-built drawings including: 1 hardcopy drawings (24 x 36 inches), pdf files, dwg files.
Schematic Design Documents (Civil, Architectural, Structural, Mechanical, Electrical, Plumbing)
Design Development Documents (Civil, Architectural, Structural, Mechanical, Electrical, Plumbing)
Construction Documents (Civil, Architectural, Structural, Mechanical, Electrical, Plumbing)
Full Architectural and Engineering Specifications (Civil, Architectural, Structural, Mechanical, Electrical, Plumbing)

SCHEDULE

Avenue - Salt Lake City, Utah 84104 0 801.521.618¢ FFKR.COM



\ STy | Bl e S >
CHITECTS
2. As-builts (both architectural and general site as-builts): 4 weeks
Schematic Design Documents: 4 weeks

Design Development Documents: 12 weeks

Construction Documents: 12 weeks

Bidding & Negotiation: 4 weeks

Construction Administration: 48 weeks

Specifications: 24 weeks*
* Specifications phase will be concurrent with Design Development and Construction Document Phases

FFKR AlX

® N U W

D. CONDITIONS & EXCLUSIONS
1. Services or information that may be necessary to perform the work and are not provided, include but are not
limited to:
a. Topographic, ALTA, and other surveys of the property
b. Soils and other materials testing or reports
c. Hazardous Materials Testing

FFKR cannot be liable for any unknown, undiscovered, or concealed conditions that result in additional work, changes
to the work, or timeline extensions.

A. DESCRIBED SERVICES
For services described in section I, FFKR will be compensated on a Fixed Sum basis. Itemized Costs by task are
indicated below. The A/E fee is based on the as built drawings, on site meetings and 7.5% of the hard cost
construction estimate of approximately $1,400,000.00. If all tasks are accepted, the Total fixed fee will be: (One
Hundred Twenty-two Thousand Nine hundred dollars) $ 122,900.00. See below for itemized breakdown.

a. As-built drawings: $4,800.00
i. Includes 1 day on site and drafting existing building + photographs
Priority 1 Fee: $42,150.00
Priority 2 Fee: $ 24,525.00
Priority 3 Fee: $38,625.00
In addition, for each milestone phase (Kickoff Meeting, Schematic Design, Design Development, and
Construction Documents) we are including 1 on site meeting @ $800 each for a total of $3,200.00.
f.  In addition, Construction Administration Services will require on site monthly meetings. We assume 12
on site meetings during construction @ $800 each for a total of $9,600.00.

oo o

Project related expenses incurred such as travel outside of project area, printing, reproduction, & shipping are
Reimbursable to the Architect & billed at a rate of cost plus ten (10) percent.

Payments to the Architect are due within thirty (30} days of the receipt of invoice.

B. ADDITIONAL SERVICES
Services that are not part of this agreement, but may be offered or required after the execution of this agreement

include but are not limited to:

1. Attendance at meetings not listed (see outlined Fee Proposal attached)
2. Additional Services
3. Specialty Consultants not included in this proposal
4. Long distance travel beyond that outlined in this proposal
3alt Lake City, Utah 84104 O 801521 A18¢ FFKR.COM

Aven



FFKR ARCHITECTS

5. Significant design revisions beyond the anticipated and outlined scope
6. Timeline extensions

N
<P
Refer to Attachment A for a list of standard hourly billing rates.

FFKR Architects Representative:

3/25/2022
Date:
Steven D. Cornell, Architect
Owner Representative:
Date:

Name (Printed):

Work on this project will begin upon return of this Proposal, bearing an authorized signature. FFKR will provide a standard
contractual agreement between owner and architect, AIA Document B105-2017.

34104 0801521 6186 FFKR COM



FFKR ARCHITECTS

Attachment A

STANDARD BILLING RATES — 2022

Sr. Principals

Principals

Sr. Associates

Associates

Project Architects

Project Managers

Landscape Architects/ Planners
3D Rendering

Interior Designers

Graphics Designers

Intern Architects

Technical Staff/ Drafters
Interior Staff/ Purchase Management

Clerical

$220.00
$190.00
$140.00
$130.00
$120.00
$110.00
$110.00
$110.00
$100.00
$100.00

$90.00

$80.00

$80.00

$60.00

/hr.
/hr.
/hr.
/hr.
/hr.
/hr.
/hr.
/hr.
/hr.
/hr.
/hr.
/hr.
/hr.
/hr.

FFKR.COM



9/8/22, 217 PM 13a Final Disc golf map.jpg

gt T P
H Evil water Disc Golf

. Course

| This course has 9 Teepads all
thrown to 1 centralized basket.Scan
the QR code to download the UDisc
¥ app with complete course info.

B G TR I R
Legend i

@ Parowan Oid Rock Church Museum E

https://drive.google.com/drive/u/1/folders/1mXKvJPPISmihd9ow8x5EFUWSCidF5fe2

M



Check out details for this

course and the Parowan

Evil
water
Disc golf

course

% [=]
o)
e

UDisc app

Y

A
[=]

Canyon course on the

pm

*

(-



